# Citizen Advocate



Your guide to protecting America's wildlife



# About Defenders of Wildlife

Defenders of Wildlife is a national, nonprofit membership organization dedicated to the protection of all native animals and plants in their natural communities.

Become a Defenders of Wildlife activist. When you join our activist network, you will receive action alerts and Wildlife eNews, our online newsletter featuring issue updates, opportunities for you to help and inspiring stories about people and wildlife. To join visit http://action.defenders.org.

Become a Defenders of Wildlife member. With your help we can continue our work to protect wildlife and the habitat it needs to survive. For more information, visit http://donate.defenders.org.

Author: Marcia Lesky, Director of National Outreach

Printed on recycled paper

©2006 Defenders of Wildlife 1130 17th St., NW Washington, D.C. 20036 (202) 682-9400



# Table of Contents

**2** Wildlife and the American Spirit

# **3** Working with Congress

- Put It in Writing
- Pick Up the Phone
- Meet Face to Face
- Keys to Successful Lobbying

# 7 Working with the Media

- Write a Letter to the Editor
- Place a Public Service Announcement

# **10** Working with Your Community

- Host an Event
- Go "Tabling"
- Pass a Resolution

# **14** Resources

**15** Action Form

# Wildlife AND THE American Spirit

RED WOLF | CURTIS CARLEY, U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

hroughout history, individuals have played a critical role in the conservation of the wildlife and wild places that make our country unique. President Ulysses S. Grant, for example, moved to protect the great natural landmarks of our country for the enjoyment of all by signing the law that established Yellowstone as the first national park. President Theodore Roosevelt resolved to protect endangered brown pelicans by setting aside Florida's Pelican Island, the nation's first national wildlife refuge.

Presidents aren't the only people who take care of our nation's treasured wildlife. In the 1970s falconers donated their own trained peregrine falcons to start the experimental captive-breeding program credited with the recovery of this swift and agile falcon and its removal from the endangered species list in 1999. Today, as they have for decades, volunteers are monitoring nesting sites to make sure bald eagles can safely fledge their young. Coastal communities are dimming their lights to ensure that newly hatched sea turtles make it from the beach to the safety of the ocean undistracted by disorienting artificial light. Boaters are taking it slow to avoid injuring endangered manatees. Citizens across the country are spending time removing invasive plant species from areas where native plants and animals are in trouble. Volunteer pilots are guiding whooping cranes along a historic migration route from Wisconsin to Florida. Young and old are joining refuge "friends" groups to help manage the wildlife and wild places that make up the National Wildlife Refuge System.

All it takes is time and personal commitment to make a difference. Whether working in your community, communicating with your elected officials or calling attention to the plight of wildlife and habitat through your local media, you can bring about change. You can help protect our treasured natural resources so that our children and grandchildren have the chance to enjoy this great place we call home. Use this booklet to guide your efforts, but remember your voice and your passion are the most effective tools you have.

variety of federal, state, local and international laws are in place to protect and manage wildlife and wildlife habitat. From local and state wildlife habitat conservation plans to the Endangered Species Act (ESA) and the Convention on the International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (CITES) to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), our government has recognized the importance of maintaining healthy ecosystems for wildlife, plants and humans alike.

With increased pressures from irresponsible, poorly planned development and air and water pollution threatening the health of our environment and the survival of individual species, we need strong laws now more than ever. As constituents, it is our duty to hold our elected officials respon-

KAMBER BUTE BUTTEREY JOIN NOT KNOT HULLES HER HILL ST. BUT HULLES SERVICE Dible for In Tr sible for upholding these laws and making sure protections for wildlife and habitat remain strong.

To fulfill our duty, we must communicate with members of Congress. There are several different ways to do this. You can effectively convey your concerns via personal letters or use e-mail to get in touch quickly. You can call them to register an opinion on urgent issues. And you can make a personal visit to their district or Washington, D.C., offices. Whatever route you choose, let the tips that follow guide you.

# Put It in Writing

Letter writing is still the most popular choice for communicating with Congress. You can write a personal letter, or participate in an organized campaign and send a signed postcard. You can mail, fax or e-mail your letter. Each method has its positives and negatives and is treated differently depending on the office. The most important thing is that your message is getting to Congress.

Regardless of the method you use to write your legislator, you must include the following basics:

- The purpose of your communication. Address only one issue in each letter, and, if possible, keep it to one page.
- Your personal perspective. Tell your representative why you care about this issue and why they should. Tell them if you're interested in birding or wildlife watching, science or economics.

• The associated bill number if there is one (for example H.R.#, or S.#)

• Your full name and return address.

### Also be sure to properly address your letter:

### To a senator:

The Honorable [full name] (Room #) (name of) Senate Office Building U.S. Senate Washington, DC 20510

Dear Senator [full name]:

### To a representative:

The Honorable [full name] (Room #) (name of) House Office Building U.S. House of Representatives Washington, DC 20515

Dear Representative [full name]:

# **Pick Up the Phone**

To find your legislators' local and Washington, D.C., phone numbers, search the online congressional directory at http://thomas.loc.gov/, or call the U.S. Capitol switchboard at 202-225-3121. Ask to be connected to your senator's and/or representative's office. Then ask to speak with the aide who handles the issue on which you wish to comment, as members of Congress are often difficult to reach.

Identify yourself by name as a constituent and tell the aide that you would like to leave a brief message such as: "Please tell Senator/Representative (Name) that I support the Endangered Species Act and oppose any attempts to weaken protection for wildlife and habitat." Briefly state your reasons for your opinion and ask for your senator's/representative's position. You can also request a written response to your call.

# **Meet Face to Face**

Most legislators are eager to meet with their constituents. Your opinions are valuable to them, and by meeting with them you can be very influential. Keep in mind that you don't have to be an expert to get your point across. The message you bring to a meeting is that of a concerned, voting constituent.

You can schedule a meeting in your legislator's local office or travel to Washington, D.C. You can also attend an open house or town hall meeting hosted or attended by your member of Congress. Keep in mind that sometimes you won't get to meet directly with the elected official, but instead will see a member of his or her staff. These people are important advisors to the legislator on issues and the concerns of their constituents.

Whether you meet with the member or a staff person, be prepared to answer these basic questions with conviction:

- What is the issue? Be ready to briefly discuss the principles of the issue. Know your facts, and be prepared with anecdotal information. Remember, members of Congress and Capitol Hill staffers learn about dozens of issues every week. It is critical that you tell a compelling story. Don't be afraid to say, "I don't know." It's always better to get back to someone with the correct answer (which also provides you with another opportunity for contact) than to be inaccurate.
- Why should I care? Clearly articulate the reasons why your member of Congress should care about your issue. If possible, make the issue local—talk about how and why it's important to their district/state and their constituents. Highlight issues that are personally important to the legislator. Is he or she a birder, hiker or scientist? Is there any other sort of personal connection with wildlife or the outdoors?
- What do you want me to do about it? It is vital to be clear on what you're asking the member of Congress to do. It could be any number of things: sponsor a bill, sign a letter, speak to their colleagues or with the media about the issue, etc.—but you have to remember to ask for exactly what you want.

When you lobby a congressional office, you're part lawyer, part salesperson and part cheerleader. You must make your case and provide the information and encouragement needed to sell legislators on your issue. As a constituent, you're a particularly effective lobbyist because you're also a voter. Voters can have much more leverage than the "inside-the-beltway" crowd. Remember, what is most important is your personal story and passion for the issue, not your expertise on all the details. Combine that with the following keys to lobbying success and you're sure to be effective.

# **KEYS TO SUCCESSFUL LOBBYING**

- Be prepared. Do your homework before the meeting. Know a little about the congress person you're lobbying (priorities, committee assignments, district/state information, relevant legislation sponsored or introduced). Have materials available to help make your case without information overload. Have a good understanding of the opposition to your issue so you can better defend your position.
- **Be patient.** Be prompt but flexible. Members' schedules are tightly packed, so if interruptions occur during your meeting, be patient. If a member has to leave, you can always ask to speak with the staff person in charge of the issue.
- See a staffer. You may not get face time with the member of Congress, but instead meet with a staff person. Aides are the eyes and ears of the legislator and can be influential whatever their age or experience level.
- **Be positive.** Start with a compliment. If possible, thank the member for a good stand he or she recently took on an issue. If you voted for the member, mention that.
- Keep it brief and basic. Typical meetings last anywhere from 10 to 20 minutes. You don't have a lot of time, and you don't want to over-

load a busy legislator with too much information. In addition to keeping it short, keep your meeting focused on the message you're there to present. If anyone strays off the topic, try to refocus on the reason you're there.



LYNX KITTEN | © COREL CORP.

- Listen. A good lobbyist not only talks, but also takes time to listen. Listening allows you to gauge the level of interest and knowledge of the member/staffer on your issue and provides an opportunity for you to engage in open discussion.
- Get a commitment. Conclude your meeting by securing a commitment from the member/staffer on the issue to sign a letter, cosponsor a bill, stay off a bill, etc. Also ask for the opportunity to follow up with staff and to provide additional information/material that would be helpful.
- Follow up. Write a note expressing your thanks for the meeting and repeating your request for a commitment. Also include any additional requested information.

# **Don't Forget**

- Defenders of Wildlife can provide you with information and materials, but your passion and commitment to wildlife and conservation are your biggest selling points.
- Whether you phone, write or visit, ask for a response. Press your legislators to tell you how they plan on voting and why.
- If your legislator votes your way on issues that are important to you, express your thanks. Your gratitude shows legislators that constituents DO pay attention to what they're doing in Washington, D.C., and that they have the support of people in their district who care about the issues and appreciate their work.
- Share what you've done with Defenders (use the Action Form on page 15). Your commitment and involvement inspire us and make us more effective in our work.



GRIZZLY BEARS | CHRIS SERVHEEN, U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE

# Working With the Media

The media can help you reach a larger audience in your community and get the attention of your elected officials who read local papers, listen to local radio broadcasts and watch local television to stay informed about the concerns of their constituents. You don't have to be a communications or public relations expert to use the media effectively to call attention to wildlife and conservation issues. Writing letters to the editor and getting local media outlets to broadcast public-service announcements are two easy ways to get publicity for your issue.

# Write a Letter to the Editor

Letters to the editor are great advocacy tools. They reach a large audience, including elected officials. They can bring up information not addressed in a news article and illustrate more widespread support for or against an issue. Following are some tips to help ensure success in getting your letter published and a sample outline to guide you as your write your own:

- Know the newspaper's policy. Call the newspaper or check its Web site for its requirements for printing letters from readers. Some newspapers have strict word-count limits; others only accept letters from people who live in the community. Many newspapers even have forms on their Web sites for submitting letters.
- Focus on the message. As you write, always keep in mind what you want the reader to come away with after reading your letter. Don't make the editor wonder what you're trying to say.
- **Be concise.** Keep your letter brief (150 to 200 words) and limited to one topic. If your letter is too long or complicated, it may be edited or discounted altogether. You can be direct, engaging and even controversial, but never defamatory or obscene—no matter how provoked you are.
- **Type and proof it.** Handwritten letters can be tough to read. Don't chance it—type your letter and proofread it carefully; letters with mistakes may be discarded quickly.
- Refer to specific articles in the paper. While some papers print general commentary, your chances of getting printed increase if your letter refers to a specific article. However, don't do a lengthy rehash of the article, simply refer to it briefly. For example, "I strongly disagree with (author's name) narrow view on habitat protection (op-ed title, date)"... "I am deeply saddened to read that Representative Doe is working to gut protections for endangered species (article title, date)"... "I am happy this paper has taken up the charge for protection of endangered species (op-ed title, date) and I hope Senator Doe listens to this message when casting her vote."
- **Be timely.** When responding to an article, submit your letter to the editor as soon as possible. You want the original article to be fresh in the mind of the audience.

SEA OTTER I CONFEL

# Working With the Media

- Get personal. The best letters contain attention-getting information or personal anecdotes. Refer to personal stories to make your point. Use personal examples whenever you can.
- **Include your contact information.** Many newspapers will print a letter only after verifying the identity and address of the author. Provide your full name, address, ZIP code and daytime telephone number so the newspaper can easily contact you to verify your letter or to discuss editorial changes prior to publication.
- **Don't give up.** Most publications are very selective. The smaller the newspaper's circulation, the better your chances of getting your letter printed. Don't keep calling to check on the status of your letter. If your letter isn't selected, don't be discouraged. You can send a revised letter with a different angle at another time. Be aware, too, that many publications have guidelines about repeatedly printing letters from a single individual, so don't expect to have your letters printed on a regular basis.
- Share your success. If your letter is published, don't stop there. Send the clip to your elected officials so they see what their constituents are writing and reading about. Don't forget to send a copy to Defenders of Wildlife, too. It's your voice that helps us succeed in our work and we want to hear it.

# **Place a Public Service Announcement**

Public service announcements (PSAs) are an efficient way to spread the word about certain issues. Radio stations and newspapers use PSAs to fill unsold advertising space. These spots educate the public about a certain issue or inform them about an event and often prompt further discussion about your issue.

Defenders of Wildlife has radio and print PSAs available on several issues, and we need your help to get



them out there. Visit Defenders' online Action Center at http://action.defenders.org to download PSA materials on the ESA and other issues to share with your local stations, newspaper or community newsletter.

To get a PSA picked up, contact your local radio station or newspaper. Ask for the news director or public affairs director, or simply ask for whoever handles PSAs. Tell them:

• Who you are. If you're a loyal listener or reader, don't forget to mention that.

• Why you're calling. Share why your community needs to hear this important message now. Thank the station or publication for taking the time to talk with you and to consider the PSA. Make sure you provide your contact information. Don't repeatedly follow up, but do send a thankyou note if you hear the PSA played, and do let Defenders know if it is.

# Working With the Media

# **Outlining Your Letter**

### **First paragraph**

- Refer to recent coverage or the reason for your letter in the first sentence, but don't waste valuable space by restating what the paper reported.
- State your primary message-the one point you want to make with the reader.

### Second and optional third paragraph

· Reinforce your message with succinct details appropriate to the newspaper or journal's typical reader. Try to make your point personal-to grab your readers and to help them connect to the issue as passionately as you do.

### **Closing paragraph**

• Restate your message in a succinct, memorable way.

# Dear Editor,

As a longtime member of Defenders of Wildlife, I object strongly to Rep. Richard Pombo's push to gut the Endangered Species Act (Chronicle, July 5, 2006). I participate in conservation efforts in our community, but also know we need a strong national commitment to protect our wildlife. For more than 30 years, the Endangered Species Act has provided that commitment and has been one of our nation's most successful conservation laws. Only nine out of 1,800 species listed as endangered under the act have been declared extinct.

In California alone the Endangered Species Act has helped save the bald eagle, gray whale, brown pelican and California condor. Unfortunately, under the guise of reform, the U.S. House of Representatives passed legislation sponsored by Pombo that is full of buy-outs and loopholes for developers and could actually lead to more wildlife extinctions. Our congressman, Rep. [insert name], voted for this bill.

The U.S. Senate has the opportunity to ensure that the House of Representatives does not get away with crippling the Endangered Species Act. We must encourage both of our state's senators to continue our national commitment to wildlife conservation by supporting a strong Endangered Species Act that will continue to protect wildlife and its habitat for generations to

### Sincerely,

Name Address Daytime phone number

ne of the best tools you have as a community activist is your passion. Sharing this passion and your knowledge about an issue will inspire others to get involved. You might not even realize just how many people you have the potential to reach out to and inspire. Not only do you have family, friends, neighbors and co-workers, but also fellow participants in all sorts of networks, activities and organizations. Use these connections to rally people to your cause. Change comes when society demands it. By recruiting others you can make that happen.

Three easy ways to get started—hosting an event in your community, setting up a table and distributing information at public events in your area, and drafting a resolution in support of an important wildlife issue for official endorsement by community leaders—are laid out below.

### Tap Established Networks

One easy way to reach out and get other people in your community involved—and increase the number of voices speaking to your elected officials—is to work through already established community networks. Local Rotary or Kiwanis groups, garden and other clubs provide great opportunities to talk to different groups of individuals. Libraries, schools, religious institutions, community and retirement centers are other good places to bring people together.

# Host an Event

Hosting a house party or other event allows you to bring people together to learn about a wildlife conservation issue and what they can do about it. You and your group can take action on the spot by preparing handwritten letters to your elected officials, composing a letter to the editor of your local newspaper, planning another event to reach out to your community-at-large, drafting a resolution, or doing all of the above. Whatever you choose to do, it's important to plan and be prepared by attending to details and having everything you need. Here are the basic steps involved:

### Before the event:

• Choose a format and location. First, decide what kind of event you want to host. You can hold a house party for friends, family, neighbors or any community group in your home. For larger groups, you can use your local library, community center or other public place. To get to know people, you can plan an outing to a local wildlife refuge, wilderness area, park or even a local wildlife rehabilitation center. These places can inspire your guests and remind them why it is so important to them to help protect wildlife and the special places they need to survive.

- Draw up a list of invitees and spread the word. Create an invite list and spread the word by phone, email, flyers and posters hung in public places. If you have the room, encourage people to bring a guest or two.
- Gather information to distribute. You can obtain general information about wildlife and the latest challenges facing conservation at www.defenders.org. Call Defenders to see if there is a local staff person who can get involved or if additional materials are available to help educate your guests. (See inside back cover for Defenders' field office and national headquarters contact information.)
- Assemble the materials you need for planned activities. If you're going to write letters, make copies of the tips on pages 7-9 of this handbook. Have paper, envelopes, stamps and the addresses of your targets available to make it easy for your group. If you're focused on Congress, each person could write up to three letters—one to their representative and one to each senator—so have plenty of supplies on hand.

### At the event:

- **Pass around a sign-in sheet.** Ask for names, e-mail and mailing addresses so you can stay in touch and keep your group informed of the latest developments.
- Give a brief presentation. You could also feature an activity such as watching a wildlife documentary or a relevant movie. If you're at a refuge or other scenic venue, remind your participants how important it is to protect these wild places.
- Distribute materials. Provide copies of fact sheets and writing tips to all attendees.
- **Involve the children.** If you have kids in your group, encourage them to draw pictures of their favorite wildlife to include with their parents' letters.
- Have fun! Order pizza, bring snacks and enjoy yourself and your group.

### After the event:

- Mail the letters you've collected. Don't forget to do this immediately after your event.
- Follow up. Use the contact information to keep your guests informed and engaged. Encourage them to visit http://action.defenders.org and join Defenders of Wildlife e-activist network.
- Tell us about it. Let us know about your event (use the Action Form on page 15). If possible, share your letters and any responses you received with us.

# **Be Creative**

Defenders activists have come up with some novel ideas for bringing people together...a wine tasting at an environmentally friendly vineyard...a wildlife photography show at an art gallery...an evening with a jewelry maker who works in natural fibers and stones. Use your imagination and plan an event people will come to and remember.

# Go "Tabling"

"Tabling" is short for the advocacy activity of setting up and staffing an informational table or booth at a public event such as a community action day, fair or Earth Day celebration. Tabling serves many purposes, including educating the public, collecting signatures on a petition, passing out postcards for mailing to elected officials, or registering people to receive more information on a topic. Moreover, tabling is fun! It's a great way to meet people in your community while working on issues that concern you. Here's all you need to know to set up shop.

- **Pick an event.** Look for special events that attract crowds that are scheduled for your area (check civic center bulletin boards and community newspapers), and find out if tabling is allowed. Some events require you to register in advance to secure space.
- Bone up on the issues and have materials available. You don't have to be an expert to staff a table. Defenders of Wildlife and other organizations involved in the issues you care about can provide you with the information and action items you need for a successful day.
- Don't be afraid to say, "I don't know." It is always better to get back to someone with the correct information than provide incorrect or incomplete information.
- Offer an option to take action. Have sign-up sheets, postcards addressed to legislators that people can fill out, petitions or other action items available.
- Follow through. When the day is over, collect your sign-up sheets for future reference and follow-up. Mail signed postcards to the identified elected official.

# Don't Forget

Check with Defenders on the availability of fact sheets, forms, sample letters and other materials you can use at your event. Defenders also may be able to provide a staff member to speak at your event or help at your table. Contact your nearest Defenders field office (see list inside the back cover).

# **Pass a Resolution**

Communities hold incredible power—the power to reach out to local constituencies and join forces to make their collective voices heard by Congress. Passing a resolution is an excellent way to focus the power of your community. A resolution in support of the ESA, for example, could call attention to the threats facing this landmark legislation as well as demonstrate to Congress the strong and widespread support in your community for protecting threatened and endangered species and the habitat on which they depend.

The tips that follow cover the steps to passing a resolution in your community. (For more details and sample materials, contact Defenders.)

Certificate of Clerk

State of Arizona County of Pima

Board of Supervisors of Pima County, Arizona

- Do your research and draw up a draft. Look over the sample resolution in support of the Endangered Species Act passed by Pima County in Arizona (opposite). In drafting your resolution, include provisions important in your community-accurate information about local endangered species and habitat, for example.
- Understand your local government and how it makes decisions. Contact a local government office for information about the decision-making process and determine who to approach about your resolution. It could be your mayor, city council or county commission.
- Build support. Collect information about the leaders who are the most concerned about conservation and may be willing to sponsor or support the resolution. Find people who have good relationships with the politicians you need to approach and who can help you figure out how best to garner their support for the resolution.
- Meet with the appropriate elected officials or staff members. Schedule meetings with the appropriate officials. Present evidence of public support for your resolution and its importance to the health and economic benefits of environmental protection. Visit http://action.defenders.org for materials. If available, bring recent supporting clips from your local newspaper.

Resolution No. 2005-210 A RESOLUTION OF THE PIMA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RELATING A RESOLUTION OF THE FIMA COUNT FIDOARD OF SUFERVISORS RELATING TO THE ENVIRONMENT AND ENDANGERED SPECIES, UPHOLDING AND THE DEVICE THE DEVICE OF THE ENDEX OF SUFERVISORS RELATING AFFIRMING THE PRINCIPLES OF THE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT AND REQUESTING THAT THE CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES RETAIN THE PROTECTIONS OF SUCH ACT IN ORDER TO PROTECT ENDANGERED SPECIES OF THE SONORAN DESERT. WHEREAS, Pima County has a long and proud tradition of respect for, and protection of our native plants and wildlife and natural resources, and WHEREAS, Pima County has collaboratively undertaken a visionary Multi-Species Habitat Conservation Plan under Section 10 of the Endangered Species Act to ensure the protection of 55 priority vulnerable species of special concern, and WHEREAS, this plan, the Sonoran Desert Conservation plan, is an award winning inspiration to many communities across the nation seeking ways to ensure a balance between urban development and the protection of native plants and wildlife, and WHEREAS, we have a responsibility to the children and future generations of Pima County residents be good stewards of our environment and to leave behind a legacy of protecting endangered species and the special places they call home, and WHEREAS, the strength and vitality of our community is inextricably linked with the health of all species and the places they live, and WHEREAS, the wonder and beauty of nature and our wildlife is a key reason many people choose Pima County as a home, and WHEREAS, we have a responsibility to use the best available science to ensure we protect this legacy for future generations, and WHEREAS, for over 30 years, the Endangered Species Act has served as the nation's safety writericity, ior over 50 years, the Entrangeneu openes rich has served as the nations safety net for wildlife, saving hundreds of plants and animals from extinction, putting hundreds in the state of t more on the path to recovery, and safeguarding the habitats on which they all depend, NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Pima County hereby upholds the Endangered Species Act and calls on our federal Congress to ensure this law remains strong Entranisered opecies rectained cans on our recerai congress to ensure outs raw remains second and vibrant so it may continue to protect the special plants and animals of the Sonoran desert Passed by the Board of Supervisors of Pima County, this 15th day of August, 2005. ATTEST: Clerk of the Board APPROVED AS TO FORM: Deputy County Attorney

• Involve your community. Encourage others in your community-including business owners, local organizations and other community leaders-to call, write and visit leaders and write letters to the editors of local newspapers in support of the resolution.

• Speak at public meetings. Attend city or county council meetings and testify publicly on behalf of the resolution.

Once your resolution passes, spread the word. Enlist the aid of local officials. More than likely they will be eager to highlight their good work. Try the following tactics to share your success with others:

- Release a statement to the media.
- Publish the resolution in community newsletters.
- Encourage other communities in the state to pass similar resolutions.
- Send a letter to your state senators and you representative along with a copy of the resolution to encourage their support.
- Write a letter to the editor praising the passage of the resolution and encourage others to write similar letters to Congress.
- Share your success with Defenders using the Action Form at the end of this handbook.
- Encourage activists in other communities to pass similar resolutions. Once they do, work up the chain together to get your state legislature or even your governor to pass a state resolution.

# Volunteer for Projects on the Ground

Activism isn't all lobbying and organizing. There are also plenty of opportunities for you to dig right in and help with projects on the ground. From invasive weed removal to bird counts, Defenders of Wildlife and local, state and federal land and wildlife management agencies often need volunteers to assist with species and habitat protection projects. Many national wildlife refuges, national parks and state and local public land areas have volunteer days or regular volunteer programs. Most of these public lands are underfunded and welcome your help. Contact the natural resources/land-management agencies in your area for information or become a Defenders of Wildlife e-activist and receive e-mail notification of volunteer activities.

# RESOURCES

### Defenders of Wildlife

www.defenders.org (information about wildlife and conservation issues) http://action.defenders.org (information and links to action items and materials; membership and e-activist enrollment)

### Federal Resource-Managing Agencies

www.fws.gov (U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service) www.nps.gov (National Park Service) www.fs.fed.us (U.S. Forest Service) www.blm.gov (Bureau of Land Management) Congress www.house.gov www.senate.gov Legislation in Current Congress www.thomas.gov

# Action<sub>Form</sub>

Thank you for your active support of wildlife conservation. Please make copies of this form, and fill one out and send it in every time you take action. This will help us stay informed and better serve our activist network.

Name:		
Address:		
City:	State:	Zip:
Activity:		
(Describe specifically. For example, name contact information for any individuals u		y people participated, etc. You can also give us nders of Wildlife.)
Suggestions:		

(Give us your ideas for what worked and what didn't work, so we can share your suggestions with other activists.)

Please mail or fax form to:

National Outreach Program Defenders of Wildlife 1130 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20036 Fax: 202-682-1331

GRAY WOLF | GARY KRAMER, U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE



# **DEFENDERS OF WILDLIFE**

HEADQUARTERS 1130 17th St. NW Washington, DC 20036 (202) 682-9400

### FIELD OFFICES

ALASKA 333 W 4th Ave., #302 Anchorage, AK 99501 (907) 276-9453

ARIZONA 110 S. Church Ave., Suite 4292 Tucson, AZ 85701 (520) 623-9653

> CALIFORNIA 1303 J St., Suite 270 Sacramento, CA 95814 (916) 313-5800

### COLORADO 1425 Market St. #225 Denver, CO 80202 (303) 825 0918

FLORIDA 233 Third St. North, Suite 201 St. Petersburg, FL 33701 (727) 823-3888

IDAHO 710 N. 6th St., 3rd Floor Boise, ID 83702 (208) 424-9385

MONTANA 140 S. 4th St. W, Suite 1 Missoula, MT 59801 (406) 549-4103

NEW MEXICO 824 Gold SW Albuquerque, NM 87102 (505) 248-0118

> OREGON 258 A St., Suite 16

Ashland, OR 97520 (541) 552-9653

NORTHWEST OFFICE 1880 Willamette Falls Dr., Suite 200 West Linn, OR 97068 (503) 697-3222



DEFENDERS OF WILDLIFE 1130 17th St., NW Washington, D.C. 20036 (202) 682-9400 www.defenders.org